
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CARTER LAKE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY HALL – 950 LOCUST ST. 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2022 AT 7:00 P.M. 
 

I. Pledge of allegiance  
II. Roll call 
III. Approval of the agenda 

A. Additions or deletions 
IV. Consent agenda 
V. New business 

A. Chief Kannedy - Swearing in of the new reserve police officers 
B. Grant Anderson – MAPA – Comprehensive Plan review 
C. New Candidates for Fire Department 

a. Ariana Wise 
b. Brendan Brody 

D. Communication from the public: 
a. None 

E. Communications from: 
1. Department Supervisors   
2. Mayor Ronald Cumberledge 

a. Community Center update  
3. City Clerk 

a. Rental Inspection program review 
b. Grant writer update 

4. Planning Board update  
VI. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS: 

A. Commercial Parking Permits – terminate permit program in 2023 
B. Engagement agreement with Ahlers & Cooney - Planning and Design loan for 

upcoming water project 
C. Resolution fixing date for a meeting on the proposition to authorize a Loan and 

Disbursement Agreement and the issuance of Notes to evidence the obligations 
of the City thereunder.  Not to Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan 
Notes. 

D. Resolution to approve pay request #13 for community center project  
E. Resolution to approve additional transfers 

VII. Comments from the Mayor, City Council members and citizens (3 minutes each) 
VIII. Executive Session  

Adjourn 
  



 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. City council minutes –  September 
2. Planning board minutes – September  
3. Abstract of claims for approval – September  
4. Receipts for approval – September 
5. Overtime and comp time reports – September 
6. Financial reports as submitted to the council – September 
7. Department head reports – September 



 

Introduction 
 
The Carter Lake Comprehensive Plan 
Carter Lake is unique among Iowa’s cities, a lakefront community surrounded by a metropolitan area. 
This status as an island in a metropolitan area creates a rare and unusual opportunity for the city. 
The Carter Lake comprehensive plan (or “plan”) is designed to provide a comprehensive vision of the 
city’s future. It is a future that is based on taking community actions that will improve the lives of the 
city’s residents and make the city uniquely attractive for continued investment. 
 
Carter Lake finds itself in a situation unlike that of any other community in the state. The city is 
surrounded by water on three sides and grew as a resort community. A resort community atmosphere is 
not unique to Iowa, but what differentiates Carter Lake is its access to a metropolitan area of more than 
500,000 residents. Carter Lake residents enjoy the atmosphere of a small community in the middle of a 
metropolitan region. 
 
In July of 1877, the Missouri River meandered around the west edge of Carter Lake creating an oxbow 
around the city. Then in the late 1800s, the Missouri River altered its direction naturally to align directly 
south, thus abandoning the oxbow and leaving it as an isolated lake. This altered river path distributed 
enough sediment to separate Carter Lake from the state of Iowa by 1,300 acres. 
 
Gradually, Omaha’s growth extended to Carter Lake. Since its founding in 1930, the city’s population has 
grown to more than 3,700. In addition, redevelopment in northeast Omaha has created exciting new 
opportunities for Carter Lake. 
 
Carter Lake’s distinctiveness is one of the city’s most important resources. Carter Lake is located 
conveniently in the center of the Omaha-Council Bluffs metro, convenient to major traffic ways, 
commercial and cultural resources, and other desirable amenities. Throughout all the changes in its 
history, Carter Lake has retained a distinctive small town character surrounded by a mid-sized city.  
 
Carter Lake’s comprehensive plan serves two fundamental purposes. First, it provides an essential legal 
basis for land use regulation such as zoning and subdivision control. Second, a modern comprehensive 
plan presents a unified and compelling vision for a community, derived from the aspirations of its 
citizens. It also establishes the specific actions necessary to fulfill that vision. 
 
The Legal Role 
Communities prepare and adopt comprehensive plans for legal purposes. Section 414 of the Code of 
Iowa enables cities to adopt zoning and subdivision ordinances to promote the “health, safety, morals, 
or general welfare of the community.” Land use regulations such as zoning ordinances recognize that 
people in a community live cooperatively and have certain responsibilities to one another. These 
regulations establish rules that govern how land is developed within a municipality and its extra-
territorial jurisdiction. 
 
However, in Iowa as in most other states, cities may not adopt land use ordinances without first 
adopting a comprehensive plan. This requirement derives from the premise that land use decisions 
should not be arbitrary, but should follow an accepted and reasonable concept of how the city should 
grow. Carter Lake’s plan provides the ongoing legal basis for the city’s authority to regulate land use and 
development. 



1 

 
The Community Building Role 
A comprehensive plan has an even more significant role in the growth of a community. The plan 
establishes a vision of Carter Lake’s future, based on the participation of residents in the planning of 
their community. As development in the region flourishes, the city will be challenged to maintain its 
community character while capitalizing on the growth occurring around it. Beyond defining a vision, the 
plan presents a unified action program that will implement the city’s goals. The plan is designed as a 
working document – a document that both defines the future and provides an achievable program for 
realizing the city’s potential. 
 
The Planning Process 
 
Public Engagement 
Public engagement for the planning process consisted of small group discussions, focus group meetings 
with stakeholders, public outreach (including social media, press releases, public notices, and 
information in the city’s newsletter), public surveys, and two public meetings.  
 
The first stage of engagement presented information on the plan update and the planning process while 
it also solicited feedback from the community on their needs and priorities. After that feedback was 
incorporated into the draft plan, the second stage of outreach focused on obtaining feedback on the 
working deliverable.  
 
Both physical and virtual materials and engagement options were provided, in order to reach a variety 
of community members. Broad themes from public engagement can be found below; detailed public 
engagement results can be found in the public engagement appendix. 
 
Visioning Survey Results 
In total, sixty five people participated in the comprehensive plan survey. The survey consisted of 44 
multiple choice questions and four open ended questions. The survey included a number of questions 
from surveys completed for comprehensive planning efforts in 2006 and 2013, in order to show 
potential changes in community priorities over time.  
 
Residents indicated a high level of satisfaction with public services. Participants rated public service, 
emergency services, and public facilities most positively. While residents reflected positively on existing 
parks and recreation, and senior center facilities, their responses also showed more is needed.  
 
Ten percent of survey participants indicated the biggest success in Carter Lake in the past five years was 
the Community Center. Features that garnered the second most support among survey participants are 
new businesses, sewer improvements, and youth sports programs. Fourteen percent of survey 
participants mentioned parks and recreation as the projects and amenities they have seen and liked in 
other places. Business district and various eateries were the next most cited projects and amenities. 
 
Residents’ ratings demonstrate the most opportunity for growth in areas of economic development and 
housing. Participants identified areas of weakness that revolved around retail opportunities, code 
enforcement and the availability of housing. Fifteen percent of survey participants cited housing as the 
most critical issue Carter Lake will face in the next five years. Fourteen percent of participants cited lake 
maintenance and preservation as the most critical issue. 
 



2 

The items cited most frequently as growth opportunities:  

● Lake maintenance and improvements  
● Code enforcement capacity 
● Expanded availability of grocery items 
● Locust Street business district revitalization 

 
Iowa Smart Planning Principles and Elements 
The Iowa State Legislature passed the “Iowa Smart Planning Act” in the spring 2010. As part of the 
response to the 2008 flooding throughout the state, cities were encouraged to develop comprehensive 
plans that follow the ten planning principles as a best practice. Furthermore, the bill also included 
thirteen elements or topics that should be considered when developing a plan. The planning process 
took into consideration these principles and each chapter addresses one or more of the prescribed 
planning elements outlined below. 
 
Smart Planning Principles: Collaboration • Efficiency, Transparency and Consistency • Occupational 
Diversity • Revitalization • Housing Diversity • Community Character • Natural Resources • Agricultural 
Protection • Sustainable Design • Transportation Diversity 
 
Comprehensive Plan Elements: Public Participation • Issues and Opportunities • Land Use • Housing • 
Public Infrastructure and Utilities • Transportation • Economic Development • Agricultural and Natural 
Resources • Community Facilities • Community Character • Hazards • Intergovernmental Collaboration 
• Implementation 
 
 
 
 

Community Profile 
 
Location 
The City of Carter Lake is surrounded on three sides by Omaha, Nebraska.  To the south of Carter Lake is 
the Missouri River and the City of Council Bluffs, Iowa. To the northeast of Carter Lake is Eppley Airfield, 
which is the major commercial airport serving eastern Nebraska and western Iowa.  Part of what makes 
Carter Lake unique is that it is located on the Nebraska side of the Missouri River but is a jurisdiction of 
Iowa legally. The oxbow-shaped lake is approximately 323 acres in area, whereas the city is 
approximately 1,236 acres. 
 
Figure 1: Carter Lake Location Map 
To be included 
 
History 
In 1853, Edmond Jefferies filed a claim on 30 acres of land, which today is known as Carter Lake, Iowa.  
During the next 14 years, the Missouri River shifted its channel slowly, enlarging Mr. Jefferies' original 30 
acres into 78 acres.  In 1877, flooding and shifting of the Missouri River created an oxbow lake and left 
behind about 2,000 acres bounded on three sides by the state of Nebraska. After extensive litigation 
between Iowa and Nebraska in 1892, the United States Supreme Court finally ruled that Carter Lake was 
a jurisdiction of the State of Iowa (145 U.S. 519).  In 1930, Carter Lake became an incorporated city.  
 



3 

Today, Carter Lake continues to grow and thrive as a small Iowa community surrounded by Omaha, 
Nebraska.  Carter Lake has established several commercial and governmental operations to service its 
residents.  Some of these operations include banks, a post office, churches, and different commercial 
establishments. Carter Lake operates under a Council/Mayor form of government. 
 
Climate 
The climate of the area is continental with relatively warm summers and cold, dry winters.  The region is 
situated between the humid east and arid west and therefore experiences wide climatic fluctuations.  
The fluctuations between the two zones produce weather conditions for periods that are characteristic 
of either zone, or a combination of both.  Low-pressure systems affect the weather commonly by 
causing periodic and rapid changes, especially during the winter months. 
 
Most rain falls during the evening as showers or thunderstorms, which occur mostly between the 
months of April and September; about 75 percent of the total precipitation falls throughout that time.  
Although winters are relatively cold, precipitation is light with only 10 percent of the total annual 
precipitation occurring in the season. Historically, Carter Lake’s highest average monthly temperature 
occurs in July at 87 degrees (Fahrenheit); the lowest average monthly temperature occurs in January at 
10 degrees. Sunshine is plentiful, from around 50 percent of possible days in the winter to 75 percent in 
the summer. 
 
Population 
Carter Lake’s growth occurred largely between 1940 and 1970, but a significant population increase was 
recorded in 2020. For most of Carter Lake’s existence, the city’s population has held at over 3,000 
residents. Due to Carter Lake being landlocked by Omaha and the lake, there is virtually no new 
developable land on which to allow for major residential growth. The city will have to rely on infill 
development to accommodate future growth.    
 
Table 1: Carter Lake Population  

Year Population % Change 

1940 846 – 

1950 1,183 39.8% 

1960 2,287 93.3% 

1970 3,268 42.9% 

1980 3,438 4.9% 

1990 3,200 (6.9%) 

2000 3,248 1.5% 

2010 3,789 16.7% 

2020 3,799 0.3% 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 



4 

 
Age 
Table 2 shows the breakdown of the population by age group. Approximately 22 percent of the 
population is under 19 years old and 21 percent is above the age of 60. The median age of Carter Lake is 
38.1 years old, which is comparable to the state average of 38.3 years of age. 
 
Table 2: Carter Lake Age Distribution 

Age Group Population % of Total Population 

Total Population 3,799 100.0% 

Under 5 406 10.7% 

5 to 9 Years 392 10.3% 

10 to 14 Years 178 4.7% 

15 to 19 Years 238 6.3% 

20 to 24 Years 204 5.4% 

25 to 29 Years 186 4.9% 

30 to 34 Years 163 4.3% 

35 to 39 Years 209 5.5% 

40 to 44 Years 279 7.3% 

45 to 49 Years 183 4.8% 

50 to 54 Years 135 3.6% 

55 to 59 Years 427 11.2% 

60 to 64 Years 229 6.0% 

65 to 69 Years 141 3.7% 

70 to 74 Years 144 3.8% 

75 to 79 Years 106 2.8% 

80 to 84 Years 47 1.2% 

85 Years and Over 132 3.5% 

Median Age 38.1 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 



5 

Race and Ethnicity 
The racial composition of Carter Lake is primarily white, with African-American, Native American, and 
Asian demographics making up only 1.5 percent of the population. Residents who identify themselves as 
“other” and “two or more races” account for 9.7 percent of the population. There are approximately 
545 Hispanic residents in Carter Lake, which account for 14.3 percent of the population; 85.7 percent of 
Carter Lake is non-Hispanic. 
 
Figure 2: Racial and Ethnic Distribution 

 
 
Education 
Slightly more than 90 percent of the population over 25 years old in Carter Lake had a high school 
degree or higher in 2020, and 13.3 percent had a bachelor’s degree or higher. Both of these percentages 
are higher than in 2010. Carter Lake’s percentage of population with at least a bachelor’s degree is less 
than those of the county and the state.   
 
Figure 3: Education Attainment 

 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

Figure 4: Education Attainment Comparison 

 
 
Median Household Income 
The median household income (the combined income of every household occupant, regardless of 
relationship) in Carter Lake in 2020 was $52,163. In comparison, the household incomes for the county 
and the state were $59,901 and $61,836, respectively. Figure 5 compares Carter Lake’s median 
household income to the county and state by income ranges.  
 
Figure 5: Median Household Income Comparison 

 
 
Poverty 
The poverty rate in Carter Lake in 2020 was 18.9%, which is higher than the poverty rates of both Iowa 
(11.1%) and Pottawattamie County (10.3%).  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



7 

Facilities and Services 
 
Introduction 
This section will establish current capacities of the public facilities and services available to residents of 
Carter Lake. In order to determine adequacy, an evaluation of the current capacities, demands, and 
accepted standards will be assessed. The established benchmarks, in conjunction with public input of 
future desires, will be used to create long-term goals for expanding and improving these services. 
 
Carter Lake Administration Building – 950 Locust Street  
Carter Lake City Hall and the Carter Lake Police Department both occupy the administration building 
that was built in 2008. The city is served by 11 sworn professional law enforcement officers. Carter 
Lake’s post office is also housed in the administration building.    
 
Edward F. Owen Memorial Library – 1120 Willow 
Carter Lake’s library was built in 1974 and later renovated in 2001 to include a large multi-purpose 
room. In 2022, construction began on the Carter Lake Community Center. This facility will be partially 
integrated into the library. Major changes include a new shared entrance and lobby space, and 
conversion of the multi-purpose room addition into community center space. As of 2022, the library 
holds a total of 6,660 volumes and has an average circulation of 42 transactions per month.  
 
Dahlheimer Senior Center – 626 Locust 
The Dalheimer Senior Center is located in Carter Lake’s former city hall building. The center provides 
social activities and meals for Carter Lake’s senior community. The senior center may eventually be 
housed in the proposed new community center that will be added on to the public library.   
 
Fire Department – 2929 N 9th Street 
The Carter Lake Fire Department is located directly west of the city administration building. The 
department retains between 25 to 35 active volunteers and employs one paid member. Approximately 
450-500 emergency calls are answered by the department per year. 
 
Maintenance Shop and Yard – 2919 N 9th Street 
City vehicles and equipment are stored and maintained behind and abutting the city administration 
building. 
 
Carter Lake Elementary – 1000 Willow Drive 
Carter Lake Elementary School is a public elementary school that is part of the Council Bluffs Community 
School District.  In 2020-2021 the elementary school enrolled 361 students, serving students in 
preschool through the fifth grade. The school building is centrally located in Carter Lake and in close 
proximity to the public library. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



8 

Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
Introduction 
This chapter represents an inventory of existing utilities, services and infrastructure delivered by the city 
and private sector providers. Carter Lake’s ability to meet existing and future demands will be addressed 
as well.  
 
Water Supply 
Carter Lake’s water supply and storage systems are handled by the Metropolitan Utilities District (MUD). 
The city does maintain the distribution system within city limits. In 2000, MUD transferred ownership of 
the Locust Street main over to Carter Lake. 
 
There are four metering pits located at: 
1. Abbott Drive and Avenue H 
2. Locust Street at city limits 
3. 11th and Locust Street 
4. Abbott Drive and Owen Parkway 
 
Storm Sewers 
Storm drainage is directed toward the lake, then pumped into the Missouri River. 
 
The storm water system is in good condition but there are some drainage concerns within the city, 
particularly along Avenue H. Recent development in the area has created capacity issues within the 
area. Pumps have been installed to address drainage problems in other sections of the city, including 
along Steele Avenue. Development of open spaces will increase the need to divert more run-off into the 
Missouri River. 
 
Sanitary Sewers 
Carter Lake’s sanitary sewer system is more than 50 years old. The lines range in size from 6” to 12” in 
diameter. Depending on the age of the lines, they are constructed of transite, ductile, plastic, or clay tile. 
The City of Omaha manages Carter Lake’s sewer treatment. In 2022, the city completed a $1.7 dollar 
city-wide sewer lining project to repair pipe cracks and sags and other issues which were contributing to 
higher volumes entering the system for treatment.      
 
Lift Stations 
Carter Lake has seven sanitary sewer lift stations that are located: 
1. 5th Street and Avenue Q 
2. Lagoon Drive 
3. 13th Street and Avenue P 
4. 13th Street and Avenue K 
5. 13th Street and Steele Avenue 
6. 9th Street and Silver Lane 
7. 9th Street and Avenue H 
 
Solid Waste and Recycling 
Deffenbaugh Industries provides solid waste collection and recycling services for Carter Lake. Curbside 
pickup for trash, yard waste, and recyclables is collected on Wednesdays. 



9 

 
Street Transportation 
A city’s transportation network should be designed and maintained to provide the greatest mobility and 
connectivity across multiple modes. 
 
Federal Functional Classifications  
The functional classification is the process which categorizes streets and highways into classes, 
according to the character of service they are intended to provide (see Figure 6 on page 9). The federal 
functional classifications present in Carter Lake include:  
 
Other Principal Arterials: These roads serve regional needs and connect major activity centers. They 
usually serve the highest traffic corridors and are designed to accommodate relatively high speeds. 
These streets often use access control devices such as raised medians to reduce traffic conflicts. Abbott 
Drive is the only major arterial street in Carter Lake. 
 
Minor Arterials: These major streets connect with and complement the major arterial system by linking 
major activity centers and connecting various parts of the city together. Unlike expressways, other 
arterials provide access usually to adjacent properties and accommodate extensive left-turn movements 
and curb cuts generally. These major streets are designed for speeds of 40 mph or below. As a rule, 
these streets are spaced at 0.5 to 1.0 miles in developed urban areas and 2.0 miles in fringe areas. 
Locust Street in Carter Lake falls within this definition.  
 
Major Collectors: The collector system links neighborhoods together and connects them to arterials and 
activity centers. Collectors are designed for low speeds (30 mph and below) relatively and provide 
unlimited local access. Collectors run within residential areas and distribute trips from arterials to their 
ultimate destinations. They also collect traffic from a neighborhood’s local streets and channel it to 
arterials. Collector streets in Carter Lake’s current system include: 
● 9th Street 
● 13th Street 
● Avenue H 
● Avenue Q 
 
Minor Collectors and Local Roads:  
Minors Collector roads serve both land access and traffic circulation in lower density residential and 
commercial/industrial areas; they also penetrate residential neighborhoods, often only for a short 
distance. Locally classified roads account for the largest percentage of all roadways in terms of mileage, 
and they are often classified by default; once all Arterial and Collector roadways have been identified, all 
remaining roadways are classified as Local Roads. 
 
Figure 6: Federal Functional Classification for Carter Lake 
To be included 
 
While quantitative capacity is not a significant issue in Carter Lake, the city does have several issues of 
concern. These include: 
 
Internal traffic flows from employment areas. The Owen Parkway developments can be reached only 
through Abbott Drive. Local connection between these areas to Carter Lake’s residential neighborhoods 
can provide better access and relieve some trips on Abbott Drive. 



10 

 
Local service in developing areas. Developments in the Abbott corridor south of Locust Street must have 
clear local circulation because of access limitations on Abbott Drive. 
 
Signalization on Abbott Drive. Traffic at the Owen Parkway and Abbott Drive should be monitored for a 
signalized intersection. However, frequent signals will compromise the functioning of Abbott Drive. A 
functional internal system can reduce the requirements for additional controlled accesses to this major 
arterial. 
 
Street and Sidewalk Conditions 
In general, the streets of Carter Lake are in good condition. Major roadways are paved with curb and 
gutter, while significant portions of residential streets are hard surfaced without curb and gutter. 
Several segments of older residential streets are in good condition with some curb work needed, 
including: 
● Stella Avenue 
● Murray Avenue 
● Avenue P 
● Cachelin Drive 
● Walker Street 
● Avenue O 
● Silver Lane 
● Hiatt Street 
● Dorene Boulevard 
● Lindwood Drive 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 

 
Parks and Recreation 
Carter Lake has eight public parks that are maintained by the Parks and Recreation Department. In 
addition to these parks, the city borders the eponymous lake to the north, which provides many 
recreational activities to residents and visitors such as fishing, kayaking, and water skiing. Shoreline Golf 
Course is another popular recreational attraction in the city.  
 
City Parks and Recreation Areas 
 
Wavecrest Park 
112 Shoreline Drive 
 
Mabrey Park 
17th Street and Willow Drive 
 
Neptune Park 
Neptune Circle and Cedar Street   
 
8th and R Park 
8th Street and Avenue R 
 
Watson Park 
9th Street and Avenue Q 
 
Ortiz Park 
9th Street and Steele Avenue 
 
Rosenbaugh Park 
14th Street and Avenue P 
 
Splash Pad and Track and Field 
11th Street and Redick Blvd 
 
Carter Lake 
As summarized in the Community Profile chapter of the plan, Carter Lake’s eponymous lake is an oxbow 
lake that was formed after flooding and shifting of the Missouri River’s channel. Today, the lake is one of 
the more significant water bodies in the Omaha-Council Bluffs region and the city’s priority attraction 
and natural amenity.  
 
Shoreline Golf Course  
Shoreline, located at 210 E. Locust Street, is an 18-hole golf course that borders the lake. The facility has 
a newly expanded clubhouse that can accommodate 175 guests for catered receptions and other 
functions. The course is a popular attraction for golfers throughout much of the greater metro.   
 
 
 
 



12 

 
Housing 
 
Introduction 
As part of the growing Omaha metropolitan area, there is opportunity to grow Carter Lake’s housing 
market through expanded variety and price points to meet the needs of its current and potential 
residents. Families with young children have been one of the fastest growing demographics to move to 
Carter Lake, which requires increased housing availability. There is also a need for housing to 
accommodate aging population groups like the Baby Boomer generation. This section discusses past and 
present housing figures for Carter Lake to help identify future housing needs through an analysis of 
household characteristics, housing types, and housing values. 
 
Housing Units 
Total housing units in Carter Lake have increased every decade since 1990, with 1,502 units being 
present in 2020. However, the vacancy rate has increased every decade since 1990, with 10.7 being the 
vacancy rate in 2020. In addition, renter-occupied housing units have continued to increase since 2000, 
with 339 housing units now renter-occupied as opposed to 278 in 2010. 2020 saw a 9.6 percent decline 
in owner-occupied housing units from 2010. 
 
Table 3: Status of Housing Units in Carter Lake 

  1990 2000 2010 2020 

Total Housing Units 1,149 1,292 1,481 1,502 

Owner Occupied 942 1,058 1,110 1,003 

Renter Occupied 168 163 278 339 

Vacancy 3.4 5.5 6.3 10.7 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 
Age of Housing Stock 
Of the 1,502 housing units in Carter Lake, 47.4 percent were built before 1970 while only 3.2 percent 
were built after 2010. Carter Lake had two major periods of housing construction, one from 1950 to 
1979 and the other from 1990 to 2009. These two periods account for 88 percent of the housing in 
Carter Lake. 
 
Figure 7: Year Residential Structure Built in Carter Lake 

 



13 

 
Household Characteristics 
In 2020, there were 1,342 total households in Carter Lake, a 1.3 percent decline from 2010. Family 
(related) households made up 71 percent of total households in the city. However, the number of non-
family (unrelated) households increased in 2020 while the number of family households decreased. This 
may indicate that more unrelated persons are cohabitating living spaces either by choice or financial 
necessity.    
 
Table 4: Household Characteristic 

 2000 2010 2020 

Total households 1,221 1,359 1,342 

Family households 914 995 956 

Non-family households 307 364 386 

Average household size 2.7 2.7 2.8 

Average family size 3.0 3.0 3.4 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 
Housing Value 
Based on 2020 American Community Survey estimates, approximately 66.5 percent of owner-occupied 
homes in Carter Lake were valued up to $149,999 or below; 26.7 percent of homes were valued 
between $200,000 and $499,999.  
 
Table 5: Carter Lake Estimated Owner-Occupied Housing Value 

Value Ranges # % 

Less than $50,000 210 20.9% 

$50,000 - $99,999 206 20.8% 

$100,000 - $149,999 249 24.8% 

$150,000 - $199,999 54 5.4% 

$200,000 - $299,999 144 14.4% 

$300,000 - $499,999 123 12.3% 

$500,000 - $999,999 17 1.7% 

$1,000,000 or more 0 0.0% 

Total Owner-Occupied Units 1,003 100.0% 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 



14 

The median housing value in Carter Lake was $111,900 in 2020, which is 79 and 73 percent of the county 
and state averages, respectively.  
 
Figure 8: Housing Value Comparison 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 

Economic Development 
 
Introduction 
Carter Lake’s inclusion in the Omaha-Council Bluffs metropolitan provides both opportunities and 
challenges to the city. Carter Lake’s geographic proximity with Omaha is both a challenge and an 
opportunity for commercial, retail, and residential development in Carter Lake. There is potential for 
Carter Lake to benefit from the spillover effect of the metropolitan area because of an increased access 
to jobs, training, and services. To harness the economic opportunity, Carter Lake must develop tactics to 
leverage the lake, trails, and surrounding park attractions to attract visitors from Omaha and other 
surrounding towns in the metropolitan area.  
 
The economy will be strengthened by championing Carter Lake’s small town identity and promoting the 
recreational opportunities afforded by the lake. Tourists seek out small towns with recreational 
opportunities, but Carter Lake must lean into the historic and unique characteristics of the lake 
community to establish itself as a tourist destination and recreational area for residents in the 
surrounding area. Additionally, the short distance from Omaha’s downtown and Carter Lake’s small 
town quality gives a perception of affordability, which makes Carter Lake a desirable place to live for 
Omaha residents working downtown. As housing costs rise in Omaha’s downtown and midtown areas, 
Carter Lake should establish an identity that living in the community is an affordable alternative with a 
short commute to Omaha’s downtown employers and attractions.    
 
However, being in such close proximity to Omaha’s urban metropolitan stifles the retail economy of 
Carter Lake, as residents are lured to Omaha for grocery shopping and retail. In the short term, there is a 
need to develop a unified strategy among the Carter Lake business community to encourage patronage 
of the locally owned businesses. Over time, Carter Lake should prioritize increasing walkability from 
residential areas to the main commercial corridor on Locust Street, as well as upholding design 
standards for new and existing businesses on Locust Street.   
 
Labor Force 
Carter Lake had a total labor force population of 1,747 in 2020, of which 94.2 percent was employed 
while 5.8 percent was unemployed. Carter Lake’s unemployment rate was at least one point higher than 
both the county and the state averages at that time.   
 
Table 6: Carter Lake Labor Force Characteristics 

Employment Status Carter Lake 

Population Over 16 Years Old 
                      

2,784  

     In Labor Force 
                      

1,747  

     Employed 
                      

1,646  

     Unemployed 
                          

101  

Unemployment Rate 5.8% 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 



16 

Table 7 shows employment of Carter Lake and the state of Iowa by industry. The five largest industries 
in Carter Lake by percentage of the workforce are manufacturing (15.2%); transportation and 
warehousing, and utilities (12.7%); educational services, and health care and social assistance (11.5%); 
professional, scientific, and management, and administrative and waste management services (11.4%); 
and finance and insurance, and real estate and rental and leasing (10.8%). 
 
Table 7: Employment by Industrial Sector Comparison - 2020 Estimates  

Industry Iowa # Iowa % 
Carter 
Lake # 

Carter 
Lake % 

Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and 
mining 47,641 4.2% 0 0.0% 

Construction 81,177 7.1% 103 7.6% 

Manufacturing 206,313 18.1% 206 15.2% 

Wholesale Trade 39,396 3.5% 19 1.4% 

Retail Trade 105,062 9.2% 89 6.6% 

Transportation and warehousing, and utilities 64,575 5.7% 172 12.7% 

Information 16,651 1.5% 7 0.5% 

Finance and insurance, and real estate and rental 
and leasing 106,930 9.4% 147 10.8% 

Professional, scientific, and management, and 
administrative and waste management services 86,703 7.6% 155 11.4% 

Educational services, and health care and social 
assistance 251,695 22.1% 156 11.5% 

Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and 
accommodation and food services 48,037 4.2% 113 8.3% 

Other services, except public administration 43,600 3.8% 113 8.3% 

Public Administration 43,194 3.8% 76 5.6% 

Total Employment 1,140,974 100.0% 1,356 100.0% 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ACS) 
 
Carter Lake Employers 
Businesses and employers located in Carter Lake are rooted in industry, transportation, education, 
recreation, and entertainment/hospitality. Paxton & Vierling Steel Co is a steel fabricator in Carter Lake 
and one of the larger employers in the city. Other centers of employment in Carter Lake include Carter 
Lake Elementary, National Freightways Inc., Shoreline Golf Course, and Prairie Flower Casino. Carter 
Lake has a number of commercial services, some of which include Casey’s General Store and Kwik Shop, 
but the city’s proximity to Omaha and Council Bluffs make it difficult to retain and grow businesses that 
might eventually have larger hiring needs that offer competitive compensation.   
 
Place of Work 
The majority of employment opportunities for Carter Lake residents in the labor force are located 
outside the community. This is mainly due to Carter Lake’s size and its proximity to Omaha and Council 
Bluffs. According to 2019 inflow/outflow data compiled by the U.S. Census, 1,733 workers that lived in 
Carter Lake left the community for employment. There were 1,066 workers that traveled to Carter Lake 
for employment but lived elsewhere, and 70 workers both lived and worked in Carter Lake.  



17 

 
Table 8: Carter Lake Employment - Inflow/Outflow 

Inflow/Outflow Job Counts # % 

Employed in the selection area 1,136 100.0% 

Employed in the selection area but living outside 1,066 93.8% 

Employed and living in the selection area 70 6.2% 

Living in the selection area 1,803 100.0% 

Living in the selection area but employed outside 1,733 96.1% 

Living and employed in the selection area 70 3.9% 

Source: U.S. Census, American Community Survey (ASC) 
 
Travel Time to Work, and Commuting Trends 
Mean travel time for Carter Lake commuters was 21 minutes according 2020 estimates, approximately 
one minute longer than both Pottawattamie County and the eight-county Omaha-Council Bluffs metro 
area.  
 
Table 9: Commuting to Work 

Means of 
Transportation 

Carter Lake % of Total Pottawattamie 
County 

% of Total 

Workers 16 years 
and over 

1,646 100.0% 45,783 100.0% 

Car, truck, or van - 
drove alone 

1,487 90.3% 38,228 83.6% 

Car, truck, or van - 
carpooled 

88 5.3% 3,892 8.5% 

Public 
transportation 

0 0.0% 229 0.5% 

Walked 0 0.0% 641 1.4% 

Other means 15 0.9% 595 1.3% 

Worked at home 56 3.4% 2,198 4.8% 

Mean travel time 
to work (minutes) 

21 N/A  N/A 

Source: U.S. Census, OnTheMap 
 



18 

Land Use and Growth Management 
 
Introduction 
The arrangement and location of future land uses should be determined before the basic services for 
Carter Lake, such as utilities, community facilities and streets can be planned. Land use classifies land 
according to the way an area is utilized – residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural or public. 
Establishing suitable areas of town in which certain types of land use are acceptable is one of the 
founding principles of planning and also is primary to the development of efficient and safe cities that 
are sound economically. This section of the plan analyzes current land use patterns and existing regional 
development trends. From this information and feedback received from members of the community, 
city officials and staff, this section also presents a Future Land Use Plan, which is intended to guide land 
use decisions and become the basis for land use regulation in Carter Lake. 
 
Existing Land Use 
Planning for future uses can be completed only after the existing land use patterns have been 
determined. The predominant land use in Carter Lake is residential, while commercial, industrial, and 
agriculture and open space uses account for the remainder of non-civic land uses in the city. Carter Lake 
is surrounded by Omaha and the lake. All potential development and redevelopment will include infill 
lots and lots vacant currently. There is no room for possible expansion of city limits. 
 
Residential – The main land use in Carter Lake is residential and it is found north of Locust Street mainly. 
The city has continued to see new single residential units constructed. These units were constructed on 
the west side of Carter Lake, east of the Shoreline Golf Course.  There is limited available space for 
residential uses, due to the inability of Carter Lake to expand beyond its boundaries. 
 
Commercial and Industrial – The commercial and industrial uses in Carter Lake are located on and 
predominantly south of Locust Street.  Commercial activity is active mainly along Locust Street and in 
the southeast corner of Carter Lake. Industrial uses are collected largely in the southwestern area of the 
city. The commercial corridor buffer separates the industrial areas from the residential uses. 
 
Agricultural and Open Space – Agricultural and Open Space uses in Carter Lake are located 
predominantly on the east side of Carter Lake. A large portion of the agricultural land is located on the 
east side of Abbott drive on the southeast corner of town. 
 

2010 Carter Lake Land Use Distribution 

  

Area 
(acres) 

Acres/100 
People 

Percent of 
Area 

Residential 263.1 6.9 30.6% 

Single Family 218.8 5.8 25.4% 

2-4plex/Townhouses 7.5 0.2 0.9% 

Multi-Family Residential - - 0.0% 

Mobile Home Residential 36.8 0.9 4.3% 

Commercial 49.4 1.3 5.7% 

Office 16.4 0.4 1.9% 

Downtown - - 0.0% 



19 

Retail and General Use 17.4 0.5 2.0% 

Auto Services 15.5 0.4 1.8% 

Industrial 174.2 4.6 20.2% 

Warehousing/Distribution 46.4 1.2 5.4% 

General Industrial 116.2 3.1 13.5% 

Salvage 11.5 0.3 1.3% 

Civic 226.6 5.9 26.3% 

Schools 2.9 0.1 0.3% 

Public Facilities and Utilities 5.4 0.1 0.6% 

Other Civic Uses 175.7 4.6 20.4% 

Parks and Rec 42.6 1.1 4.9% 

Road Right of Way 147.8 3.9 17.2% 

TOTAL URBAN OR 
DEVELOPED 861.0 22.8 100.0% 

Open Space/Water 155.3 4.1   

Vacant Urban Land 153.8 4.1   

Vacant Dwellings 5.3 0.1   

TOTAL AREA 1,175.4 36.2   

 
Future Land Use 
The Future Land Use Plan provides the basic framework upon which a comprehensive plan is built, by 
coordinating the appropriate designation for residential, commercial, industrial, open space/agricultural, 
and public use areas throughout the community.  This section of the plan includes seven different land 
use classifications and should be used to guide how Carter Lake designates zoning of the existing areas 
within the community and redevelopment areas. The intent of the Land Use Plan is to ensure that future 
development takes into account land use compatibility, market conditions and trends, environmental 
features, utilities, streets, other community services, and public input on the growth and development.   
 
Figure 9: Carter Lake Future Land Use Plan 
To be included 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 

Implementation 
 
Introduction 
This chapter pulls the quantifiable and quantifiable data recorded and the feedback received during 
public engagement to form actionable goals, policies, and strategies that are important to the Carter 
Lake community and contribute to the community’s growth.   
 
Implementation refers to the policies and actions that have been identified to carry out the vision of this 
comprehensive plan update. It includes actions designed to improve the long range planning process, 
strengthens links between the plan and capital improvement budgeting, establishes a process reporting 
system to monitor the progress, and schedules for plan updating and maintenance.  
 
The success of this comprehensive plan update is contingent on the implementation of the goals and 
policies identified in this section. While the role of the Carter Lake Planning and Zoning Commission is to 
ensure the orderly growth of the city by adherence to the comprehensive plan, it is up to the 
stakeholders in Carter Lake to champion the projects envisioned to the implementation of them. What 
happens with the plan, how it is used in day-to-day decision making, and the extent to which it is 
followed over time will all influence the success of the plan. This plan is a living guidance document 
meant to reflect the current and future vision of Carter Lake as it evolves. It is not the end of the 
planning process, but the beginning of a coordinated effort to direct growth and development in ways 
that are important to the citizens of Carter Lake. 
 
Goals and Objectives 
Here the goals, objectives, and overall policy suggestions for the entire comprehensive plan are 
outlined. Objectives give more detail and describe the activities needed to achieve the desired goals of 
the city. The implementation section synthesizes the information from the existing profile of the city and 
the public input from the visioning component of this plan update. The objectives are a means to 
achieve the goals established by the city and they imply a clear commitment to Carter Lake’s future 
development. 
 
Facilities and Services Implementation 
Goal A: Continue to provide excellent public facilities and services, through means of planning for future 
needs, ongoing maintenance, and increasing accessibility features. 
 

Objective A.1 – Allocate adequate funding for ongoing maintenance and operations as well as 
future strategic investments. 
 
Objective A.2 – Complete a facility assessment of the Carter Lake Administration Building to 
determine existing and future needs.  
 
Objective A.3 – Ensure that accessibility features are installed at all public spaces and areas of 
community attraction and use.   

 
 
 
 
 



21 

Utilities and Infrastructure Implementation 
Goal B: Ensure reliable infrastructure, including municipal utilities, energy and communication utilities, 
and streets; provide a comprehensive transportation system of streets, trails and sidewalks that 
supports investment and enhances the safe and efficient movement of people, goods and services. 
 

Objective B.1 – Institute a regular, annually funded local street rehabilitation program.  
 
Objective B.2 – Install appealing directional signage to lead visitors to community attractions 
and features.  
 
Objective B.3 – Establish a plan to develop a continuous sidewalk network on both sides of every 
street.  
 
Objective B.4 – Consider transportation policies and design practices that require streets to be 
planned, designed, operated, and maintained to enable safe, convenient, and comfortable 
travel and access for users of all ages and abilities regardless of their mode of transportation.  
 
Objective B.5 – Foster collaborative relationships with the City of Omaha, Pottawattamie 
County, and other local governmental jurisdictions; enter into interlocal agreements with 
neighboring jurisdictions for the purposes of cost savings and reducing redundancy. 

 
 
Parks and Recreation Implementation 
Goal C: Provide recreational amenities available to current and future residents and visitors to the 
community.  
 

Objective C.1 – When practicable and cost effective, consider all methods to preserve and 
enhance the lake so that it continues to remain a desirable recreational amenity and a source of 
pride and enjoyment for the community.  
 
Objective C.2 – Support implementation of the Carter Lake Trail Connection.  
 
Objective C.3 – Support implementation of the Levi Carter Park Trail.  
 
Objective C.4 – Support development of the city-owned green space to the east of Carter Lake 
Elementary in a way that complements the function and patrons of the Library, Community 
Center, and Elementary School, and all other users of all ages and abilities. 
 
Objective C.5 – Support and accommodate youth activities and programs for a wide variety of 
interests.  
 
Objective C.6 – Develop a pedestrian and bike trail system that links key community destinations 
with the lakeshore.  
 
Objective C.7 – Maintain and improve city parks and spaces in a manner that ensures continued 
use and enjoyment by the public.  
 



22 

Objective C.8 – Consider unique and innovative ways to activate public spaces for community 
betterment and character.    

 
 
Housing Implementation 
Goal D: Provide a variety of housing opportunities in appropriate locations throughout Carter Lake; 
promote the creation and maintenance of an adequate supply of safe and affordable housing that 
supports the needs of residents.  
 

Objective D.1 – Increase housing options of various types and at all price ranges, including high-
density and mixed use options.  
 
Objective D.2 – Expand existing rehabilitation and code enforcement efforts into a 
comprehensive, multi-faceted rehabilitation and neighborhood development program. 
 
Objective D.3 – Work with housing and social service providers to address health and safety 
concerns in housing.  
 
Objective D.4 – Consider feasible solutions to address the increasing homeless/transient 
population.  

 
Objective D.5 – Partner with nonprofit housing development corporations in the region to 
increase availability of affordable housing options.  

 
 
Economic Development Implementation 
Goal E: Foster a strong and diverse local economy that provides a range of employment and business 
opportunities. 
 

Objective E.1 – Focus initial efforts on small, easily-implementable projects that may add to a 
feeling of momentum in the community. 
 
Objective E.2 – Create a comprehensive economic development strategy to support existing 
businesses and attract and develop new businesses in Carter Lake. 
 
Objective E.3 – Focus and prioritize commercial development along the Locust Street corridor.  
 
Objective E.4 – Recruit external partners to support opportunities for new and existing 
businesses; partners may include Pottawattamie County Development Corporation, Advance 
Southwest Iowa, or others willing to work with the city.   
 
Objective E.5 – Foster relationships with the local philanthropic community. 
 
Objective E.6 – Identify and track grant funding opportunities that can advance economic 
development.  
 
Objective E.7 – Consider design standards for new commercial development to enhance visual 
appeal, with emphasis focused on Locust Street. 



23 

 
 
Use and Growth Management Implementation 
Goal F: Carter Lake will expand the tax base and employment opportunities in a responsible and 
sustainable manner through the implementation of land use regulations which protects natural 
features, takes advantage of community assets, and maximizes effectiveness of municipal infrastructure. 
 

Objective F.1 – Develop a city-wide land use pattern that ensures compatible and 
complementary relationships between land uses. 
 
Objective F.2 – Continue to maintain, update, and enforce zoning regulations and building 
codes. 
 
Objective F.3 – Adopt flexible zoning districts and overlays in underdeveloped areas to reduce 
barriers for new housing and commercial development.  
 
Objective F.4 – Develop Locust Street as a mixed-use corridor that separates residential use to 
the north from industrial and commercial uses to the south. 
 
Objective F.5 – Consider succession planning and mentoring for all elected and appointed city 
positions. 
 
Objective F.6 – Work collectively with the public and civic organizations to identify strategies to 
retain and recruit volunteers for the fire department and other community needs.  
 
Objective F.7 – Accommodate development that is appropriate for floodplains.  
 
Objective F.8 – Create and maintain an inventory of vacant lots and physical properties; work 
with economic development partners in Pottawattamie County to market properties and 
identify interested developers/investors.  

 
 
Impact Analysis and Review  
Every significant proposal that requires action by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
should be accompanied by an evaluation of its potential to implement the goals, objectives and policies 
of this plan.  This evaluation can be quite simple in situations where the impact is minimal, amounting to 
no more than a brief indication of whether the plan provides direction and whether the proposal 
conforms to the plan. Where a requested proposal is inconsistent with the plan, additional review 
procedures are necessary. 
 
Land Use Proposals: To the greatest extent possible, development proposals should align with the goals, 
objectives, and overall vision of the city’s comprehensive plan. If a development proposal does not 
reflect the values of the plan, consideration should be given to suggesting modifications to the proposal, 
or using the following criteria to determine if a plan amendment is justified: 

● The character of the adjacent neighborhood; 
● The zoning and uses of nearby properties; 
● The benefits of the proposal to the public health, safety and general welfare compared to the 

hardship imposed on the applicant if the request is not approved; 



24 

● Comparisons between the existing plan and the proposed amendments; and  
● Consideration of public input.   

 
Comprehensive Proposals: In more comprehensive proposals (such as a capital improvements program, 
a new zoning ordinance or maps, or a subarea plan) a more extensive evaluation may be required to 
identify potential revisions to the proposal or to the plan. The Planning and Zoning Commission report 
on such a proposal should include an evaluation which includes the following: 

● Description of the proposal; 
● Identification of elements of the plan affected by the proposal; 
● Evaluation of the effects of the proposal on the plan, by element (such as goals and objectives, 

land use, or public facilities and infrastructure). If the proposal supports the plan, the evaluation 
should so indicate, but if it conflicts, then that should be identified as well; and 

● Identification of the adjustments to the plan or the proposal which would reduce any noted 
conflicts or adverse impacts. 

 
Annual Review of the Plan 
After adoption of the Carter Lake comprehensive plan, opportunities should be provided to identify any 
changes in conditions that would impact any of the plan’s elements. Each year after adoption of the 
plan, a report should be prepared by the Planning and Zoning Commission and transmitted to the City 
Council, which provides information and recommendations as to whether the plan is current and still 
valid for guiding long-term growth in the community. The review should also include an outline of 
elements of an implementation program which would be undertaken. Such implementation activities 
might include: development and adoption of zoning adjustments or other implementation measures; 
development of area studies and more refined plans; plans and programs for implementation of specific 
projects; or the identification of new funding sources or techniques. 
 
  
  



Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Jason L. Comisky 
515.246.0337 
jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com 

 
WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 

 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

 
October 10, 2022 

 
Via E-mail Only 
Jackie Carl 
City Clerk 
City of Carter Lake 
950 East Locust Street 
Carter Lake, Iowa 51510  
 

Re: City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa - Bond Counsel Engagement Agreement 
Not to Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue  Capital Loan Notes Anticipation Project Note, 
Series 2023 (Planning and Design Loan) 

 
Dear Mayor and City Council: 
 

The purpose of this Engagement Agreement (the "Agreement") is to disclose and memorialize the 
terms and conditions under which services will be rendered by Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. as bond counsel to 
the City of Carter Lake, Iowa (the "City" or "Issuer") in connection with the above-referenced issuance 
(the "Notes").  While additional members of our firm may be involved in representing the Issuer on other 
matters unrelated to the Notes, this Agreement relates to the agreed-upon scope of bond counsel services 
described herein (the "Services").   
 
A. SCOPE OF SERVICES -- Bond Counsel 
 
 As Bond Counsel, we will represent the City in the issuance of the Notes through the SRF 
Program and purchased by the Iowa Finance Authority (the "Note Purchasers"), counsel for the Note 
Purchasers, and the Municipal Advisor (you and all of the foregoing persons or firms collectively, the 
"Participants").  We intend to undertake each of the following as are necessary:  
 

1. Review relevant Iowa law relating to the legal status and powers of the City or otherwise relating 
to the issuance of the Notes. 

 
2. Obtain information about the Note transaction and the nature of use of the facilities or purposes to 

be financed (the "Project"). 
 

3. Review the proposed timetable and consult with the Participants as to the issuance of the Notes in 
accordance with the timetable. 

 
4. Consider issues arising under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable tax 

regulations and other sources of law relating to the issuance of the Notes on a tax-exempt basis. 
 

5. Prepare or review documents, including tax compliance certificates, review the bond purchase 
agreement, if applicable, and, at your request, draft descriptions of the documents which we have 
drafted.   

 



Page 2 
 
 

6. Prepare or review all pertinent proceedings to be considered by the governing body of the City; 
confirm that the necessary quorum, meeting and notice requirements are contained in the 
proceedings and draft pertinent excerpts of minutes of meetings relating to the financing. 

 
7. Attend or host such drafting sessions and other conferences as may be necessary, including a 

preclosing, if needed, and closing; and prepare and coordinate the distribution and execution of 
closing documents and certificates, opinions and document transcripts. 

 
8. Render our legal opinion regarding the validity of the Notes, the sources of payment for the Notes 

and the federal income tax treatment of interest on the Notes, which opinion (the "Bond 
Opinion") will be delivered in written form on the date the Notes are exchanged for their 
purchase price (the "Closing").  The Bond Opinion will be based on facts and law existing as of 
its date. Please note that our opinion represents our legal judgment based upon our review of the 
law and the facts so supplied to us that we deem relevant and is not a guarantee of a result. 

 
9. Subsequent to the Closing, we will prepare and provide the Participants a bond transcript 

pertaining to the Notes and make certain the appropriate Federal Information Reporting Form 
8038 is filed for each series. 

 
B.  LIMITATIONS 
 

The duties covered by this Agreement are limited to those expressly set forth above.  Our fee does 
not include the following services, or any other matter not required to render our Bond:   
 

1. Preparing requests for tax rulings from the Internal Revenue Service, or "no action" letters from 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
2. Drafting state constitutional or legislative amendments. 
 
3. Pursuing test cases or other litigation, such as contested validation proceedings. 
 
4. Representing the Issuer in Internal Revenue Service examinations or inquiries, or Securities and 

Exchange Commission investigations. 
 
5. After Closing, providing continuing advice to the Issuer or any other party concerning actions 

necessary to assure that interest paid on the Notes will continue to be excludable from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. 

 
6. Opining on a continuing disclosure undertaking pertaining to the Notes and, after the execution 

and delivery of the Notes, providing advice concerning any actions necessary to assure 
compliance with any continuing disclosure requirements. 

 
7. After Closing, providing continuing advice to the Issuer or any other party concerning disclosure 

issues or questions that relate to the Notes. 
 
8. Undertaking responsibility as disclosure counsel. 

 
We will provide one or more of the services listed in subsections (1)–(8) of this Section B upon your 
request, however, a separate, written engagement or request for services will be required before we 
assume one or more of these duties.  The remaining services in this list, specifically those listed in 
subsections (9)–(14) of this Section B below, are not included in this Agreement, nor will they be 
provided by us at any time.   



Page 3 
 
 
  

9. Providing any advice, opinion or representation as to the financial feasibility or the fiscal 
prudence of issuing the Notes, the financial condition of the Issuer, or to any other aspect of the 
financing, such as the proposed financing structure, use of a financial advisor, or the investment 
of proceeds of the Notes. 

 
10. Independently establishing the veracity of certifications and representations of the City or the 

other Participants. 
 
11. Acting as an underwriter, or otherwise marketing the Notes. 
 
12. Acting in a financial advisory role. 
 
13. Preparing blue sky or investment surveys with respect to the Notes. 
 
14. Making an investigation or expressing any view as to the creditworthiness of the Issuer or of the 

Notes. 
 
C. ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP; OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
 Upon execution of this Agreement and upon notification by the Issuer that our Bond Counsel 
services are requested with regard to a specific issue of Notes, the Issuer will be our client and an 
attorney-client relationship will exist between us with respect to the issuance of the Notes.  We assume 
that all other parties will retain such counsel as they deem necessary and appropriate to represent their 
interests in this transaction.  We further assume that all parties understand that in this transaction we 
represent only the Issuer, we are not counsel to any other party, and we are not acting as an intermediary 
among the parties.  Our services are limited to those contracted for in this Agreement; the Issuer’s 
execution of this Agreement will constitute an acknowledgement of those limitations.  Our representation 
of the Issuer will not affect, however, our responsibility to render an objective Bond Opinion. 
 
 Our representation of the Issuer and the attorney-client relationship created by this Agreement 
with respect to a series of Notes will be concluded upon issuance of such Notes.  Nevertheless, 
subsequent to Closing, we will mail the appropriate completed Internal Revenue Service Form 8038 and 
prepare and distribute to the Participants a transcript of the proceedings pertaining to the Notes. 

 
As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, companies and individuals.  It 

is possible that during the time that we are representing the Issuer, one or more of our present or future 
clients will have transactions with the Issuer.  We do not believe such representation, if it occurs, will 
adversely affect our ability to represent you as provided in this Agreement, either because such matters 
will be sufficiently different from the issuance of the Notes so as to make such representations not 
adverse to our representation of you, or because the potential for such adversity is remote or minor and 
outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other client will be relevant to 
any aspect of the issuance of the Notes.  We will decline to participate in any matter where the interests of 
our clients, including the Issuer, may differ to the point where separate representation is advisable.  The 
firm historically has arranged its practice to hold such occasions to a minimum, and intends to continue 
doing so.  Execution of this Agreement will signify the Issuer's consent to our representation of others 
consistent with the circumstances described in this paragraph. 

 
D. OTHER TERMS OF THE ENGAGEMENT; CERTAIN OF YOUR UNDERTAKINGS 

 
Please note our understanding with respect to this Agreement and your role in connection with 

the issuance of the Notes: 



Page 4 
 
 

 
1. In rendering the Bond Opinion and in performing any other Services hereunder, we will rely upon 

the certified proceedings and other certifications you and other persons furnish us.  Other than as 
we may determine as appropriate to rendering the Bond Opinion, we are not engaged and will not 
provide services intended to verify the truth or accuracy of these proceedings or certifications.   

 
2. The factual representations contained in those documents which are prepared by us, and the 

factual representations which may also be contained in any other documents that are furnished to 
us by you are essential for and provide the basis for our conclusions that there is compliance with 
State law requirements for the issue and sale of valid Notes and with the Federal tax law for the 
tax exemption of interest paid on the Notes.  Accordingly, it is important for you to read and 
understand the documents we provide to you because you will be confirming the truth, accuracy 
and completeness of matters contained in those documents at the issuance of the Notes. 

 
3. If the documents contain incorrect or incomplete factual statements, you must call those to our 

attention.  We are always happy to discuss the content or meaning of the transaction documents 
with you.  During the course of this engagement, we will further assume and rely on you to 
provide us with complete and timely information on all developments pertaining to any aspect of 
the Notes and their security.   
 

4. You should carefully review all of the representations you are making in the transaction 
documents.  To the extent the facts and representations stated in the documents we provide to you 
appear reasonable to us, and are not corrected by you, we are then relying upon your signed 
certifications for their truth, accuracy and completeness. 
 

5. Issuing the Notes as "securities" under State and Federal securities laws and on a tax-exempt 
basis is a serious undertaking.  As the issuer of the Notes, the City is obligated under the State 
and Federal securities laws and the Federal tax laws to disclose all material facts.  The City’s 
lawyers, financial advisors and bankers can assist the City in fulfilling these duties, but the City in 
its corporate capacity, including your knowledge, has the collective knowledge of the facts 
pertinent to the transaction and the ultimate responsibility for the presentation and disclosure of 
the relevant information.   
 

6. As noted, the members of the governing body of the City also have duties under the State and 
Federal Securities and tax laws with respect to these matters and should be knowledgeable as to 
the underlying factual basis for the bond issue size, use of proceeds and related matters. 

 
E. FEES 
 

1. It is our practice to bill our fees as Bond Counsel on a transactional basis instead of hourly.  
Factors which affect our billing include:  (a) the amount of the issuance; (b) an estimate of the 
time necessary to do the work; (c) the complexity of the issue (number of parties, timetable, type 
of financing, legal issues and so forth); (d) recognition of the partially contingent nature of our 
fee, since it is customary that in the case no financing is ever completed, we render a greatly 
reduced statement of charges; and (e) a recognition that we carry the time for services rendered 
on our books until a financing is completed, rather than billing monthly or quarterly.   

 
2. We estimate that our fee for Bond Counsel services will not exceed $6,400.  If, at any time, we 

believe that circumstances require an adjustment of our original fee estimate, we will advise you 
of such requirement.  Such adjustment might be necessary in the event: (a) the principal amount 
of Notes actually issued differs significantly from the amount anticipated at the time we initially 
estimated our fee; (b) material changes in the structure or schedule of the financing occur; or (c) 



Page 5 
 
 

unusual or unforeseen circumstances arise which require a significant increase or decrease in our 
time or responsibility.   

 
3. In addition to our flat fees, we will charge for any incidental costs incurred (copies, overnight 

charges, bond printing, travel reimbursement, deliveries, etc.).  We estimate that such charges 
will not exceed $500.  We will contact you prior to incurring expenses that exceed this amount. 
 

F. BILLING MATTERS: 
 
 We will submit a summary invoice for the professional services described herein after Closing. In 
the event of a substantial delay in completing the financing, we reserve the right to present an interim 
statement for payment.  Unless other arrangements have been agreed upon in advance, we anticipate our 
statements to be paid in full within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 If, for any reason, the financing represented by an issue of Notes is not consummated or is 
completed without the delivery of our Bond Opinion, or our services are otherwise terminated, we will 
expect to be compensated at our normal hourly rates1, plus incidental costs, as described above (not to 
exceed the fee we would have received if we had rendered our Bond Opinion).   
 

G. RISK OF AUDIT BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE (IRS) 
 
The IRS has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in the 

view of the IRS, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is excludable from gross income of the owners 
for federal income tax purposes.  We can give no assurances as to whether the IRS might commence an 
audit of the Notes or whether, in the event of an audit, the IRS would agree with our opinions.   

 
H. RECORDS 

 
1. At your request, papers and property furnished by you will be returned promptly upon receipt of 

payment for outstanding fees and client charges. Our own files, including lawyer work product, 
pertaining to the transaction will be retained by us.  For various reasons, including the 
minimization of unnecessary storage expenses, we reserve the right to dispose of any documents 
or other material retained by us after the termination of this Agreement.  It is our practice to retain 
transcripts for each financing for at least the life of the Notes.  We may store some or all client 
file materials in a digital format.  In the process of digitizing such documents, any original paper 
documents provided by you will be returned to you.  Any copies of paper documents provided by 
you will not be returned to you unless you request such copies in writing.  You will be notified 
prior to destruction of our file, and will have the option to request them, should you desire. 

 
2. In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send documents, information or data 

electronically or via the Internet or store electronic documents or data via computer software 
applications hosted remotely or utilize cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic 
documents or data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. We may use third party 
service providers to store or transmit these documents or data. In using these electronic 
communication and storage methods, we employ reasonable efforts to keep such 
communications, documents and data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable 
laws, regulations, and professional standards; however, you recognize and accept that we have no 

 
1. The firm reviews hourly rates on an annual basis, and reserves the right to implement rate adjustments.  If implemented in 

any particular year, adjustments generally become effective on January 1.  Accordingly, our work on this matter will be 
billed at the hourly rate in effect at the time services are performed.   Our current (2022) hourly rates are as follows: 
a. Attorneys:  $200-$355/hour (for reference purposes, the undersigned’s hourly rate as of 01/01/22 is $320/hour).   
b. Legal Assistants:  $125/hour.    



Page 6 
 
 

control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any communications, documents or data 
once it has been transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access while stored, 
notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us or by our third party vendors. 
By your acceptance of this letter, you consent to our use of these electronic devices and 
applications and submission of confidential client information to or through third party service 
providers during this engagement. 

 
I. OTHER ADVICE 

 
1. If requested, we will maintain one or more separate accounts for periodic services rendered to the 

Issuer in connection with other matters unrelated to any particular financing.  Such services may 
involve the rendering of advice, opinions or other assistance in connection with such issues 
including, but not limited to (a) financing alternatives in connection with a particular project,     
(b) compliance with lending programs, (c) the impact of specified actions on tax-exempt status of 
outstanding Notes, (d) interpretation and/or required actions with regard to other "financial 
obligations" under a continuing disclosure certificate, or (e) other matters the Issuer may seek 
advice or guidance upon.  Billings for such separate services will be based on our standard hourly 
rate of the individual attorney at the time of performing such separate services.   
 

      ****** 
  



Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 Please carefully review the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  If the above correctly 
reflects our mutual understanding, please so indicate by returning a signed and dated copy of this 
Agreement, retaining an original for your file as well.   
 
 If you have questions regarding any aspect of the above or our representation as Bond Counsel, 
please do not hesitate to contact me.   
 

 
 

Very truly yours, 
 

 
Jason L. Comisky 
FOR THE FIRM 
 

 
JLC:ks 
 
 
 
Accepted: 
City of Carter Lake, Iowa 
 
 
By: __________________________________ Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
*Approved by action of the governing body on __________________, 2022. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
02109891-1\16086-065 



Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Jason L. Comisky 
515.246.0337 
jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com 
 

 WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 
 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

 
October 10, 2022 

 
Via E-mail Only 
Ms. Jackie Carl 
City Clerk 
City of Carter Lake 
950 East Locust Street 
Carter Lake, Iowa 51510 
 

RE: City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa 
Not To Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes 
(State of Iowa Revolving Fund Planning and Design Loan) 
 

Dear Jackie: 
 
 We have now prepared and are enclosing herewith suggested proceedings to be acted 
upon by the Council in fixing the date of a meeting on the proposition to issue the above 
mentioned Capital Loan Notes and ordering publication of a notice of hearing consistent with the 
provisions of Code Sections 384.24A and 384.83. 
 
 We understand the City has qualified for a 0% interim planning and design loan from 
Iowa Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program (the "DWSRF Program") to be applied to 
the engineering and planning for certain projects.  Following design of your project, additional 
hearing(s) will be necessary to obtain borrowing authority over and above the amount covered 
herein.  The hearing called by the enclosed proceedings will permit the City to take advantage of 
the 0% interim loan program, which may be rolled into the future long-term SRF loan. 
 
 As you may know, the borrowing of loan funds by the City through the SRF program 
involves the same procedures applicable to the issuance and sale of municipal bonds generally.  
Although the Iowa Finance Authority (the "Authority") has agreed to make the City a loan under 
the terms of a Loan and Disbursement Agreement, that loan will be secured and evidenced by a 
Water Revenue Capital Loan Note that will be issued to the Authority at the time the loan is 
closed. 
 
 Notice of this meeting must be published at least once in a legal newspaper, printed 
wholly in the English language, published at least once weekly, and having general circulation in 
the City.  The date of publication is to be not less than four clear days nor more than twenty days 
before the date of said public meeting.  In computing time, the date of publication should be 
excluded.  If the last day falls on Sunday, the whole of the following Monday should be 
excluded. 

mailto:jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com


Page 2 
 
 
 
 Please keep us advised of the schedule so we can provide the necessary proceedings to 
complete this loan. 
 
 Please provide us with a copy of the procedure following the Council's action for our 
transcript of the action taken, as well as a copy of the publisher's affidavit with respect to the 
publication of the Notice involved once they become available. A certificate to attest the 
proceedings is also enclosed. 
 

We will prepare and send to you proceedings for the hearing and for approving this 
interim loan.  Should you have any questions concerning the enclosed proceedings or the SRF 
Program, please don't hesitate to contact me.  
 
 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jason L. Comisky 
FOR THE FIRM 
 

 
JLC:ks 
Enclosure 
cc: Scott Stevenson (via email) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02109899-1\16086-065 



NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CARTER LAKE, IOWA ON THE MATTER OF THE 

PROPOSED AUTHORIZATION OF A LOAN AND 

DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF 

NOT TO EXCEED $1,425,000 WATER REVENUE CAPITAL 

LOAN NOTES, AND THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE THEREOF 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Council of the City of Carter Lake, Iowa, will 

hold a public hearing on the 21st day of November, 2022, at ___________ ______.M., in the 

Council Chambers, City Hall, 950 Locust Street, Carter Lake, Iowa, City of Carter Lake, Iowa, at 

which meeting the Council proposes to take additional action for the authorization of a Loan and 

Disbursement Agreement by and between the City and the Iowa Finance Authority, and the 

issuance to the Iowa Finance Authority of not to exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan 

Notes to evidence the obligations of the City under said Loan and Disbursement Agreement, in 

order to provide funds to pay the costs of acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extending, 

remodeling, improving, repairing and equipping all or part of the Municipal Water System.  The 

Notes will not constitute general obligations or be payable in any manner by taxation, but will be 

payable from and secured by the Net Revenues of the Municipal Water System. 

 

The proceeds of the Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes may be applied to pay project 

costs directly or as interim financing which the City will issue in anticipation of the future receipt 

of funds or Note proceeds applicable to the foregoing project and purpose. 

 

 At the above meeting the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City, to the above action.  After all objections have been 

received and considered, the Council will at this meeting or at any adjournment thereof, take 

additional action for the authorization of said Loan and Disbursement Agreement and the 

issuance of Notes or will abandon the proposal to issue the Notes. 

 

 This Notice is given by order of the Council of City of Carter Lake, Iowa, as provided by 

Sections 384.24A and 384.83 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2022. 

  

 

  

City Clerk, City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa 

 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR OCTOBER 17, 2022 
 

CITY OF CARTER LAKE, IOWA 
 
 
Not to Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes. 
 
•  Resolution fixing date for a meeting on the proposition to authorize a Loan and 

Disbursement Agreement and the issuance of Notes to evidence the obligations of the 
City thereunder. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE  
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE CITY.



- 1 - 

October 17, 2022 
 
 The City Council of the City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 950 Locust Street, Carter Lake, Iowa, at 
__________ o'clock _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Mayor 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Council Members: 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 

 
 

* * * * * * *  
  



- 2 - 

 Council Member _________________________ introduced the following Resolution 
entitled "RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE AUTHORIZATION OF 
A LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $1,425,000 WATER REVENUE CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF THE CITY OF 
CARTER LAKE, IOWA, AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF", 
and moved that the same be adopted.  Council Member ______________________ seconded the 
motion to adopt.  The roll was called and the vote was, 
 
 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
 Whereupon, the Mayor declared the Resolution duly adopted as follows: 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE FOR A MEETING ON THE 
AUTHORIZATION OF A LOAN AND DISBURSEMENT 
AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$1,425,000 WATER REVENUE CAPITAL LOAN NOTES OF 
THE CITY OF CARTER LAKE, IOWA, AND PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION OF NOTICE THEREOF 

 
 WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that the City of Carter Lake, Iowa 
should provide for the authorization of a Loan and Disbursement Agreement and the issuance of 
Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes, in the amount of not to exceed $1,425,000, as authorized by 
Sections 384.24A and 384.83, Code of Iowa, as amended, for the purpose of providing funds to 
pay costs as hereinafter described; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has applied for a loan through the Iowa Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund Program pursuant to which the Iowa Finance Authority has agreed to purchase 
the City's Notes and has requested that such Notes be issued as a single Note in a denomination 
equal to the total amount of the issue as authorized by Chapter 384, Code of Iowa; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is proposed that the City fund its costs on an interim basis under Section 
76.13 of the Code of Iowa, anticipating in part, the future receipt of the proceeds of the issuance 
of said Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Loan and Disbursement Agreement and Note shall be payable solely and 
only out of the net earnings of the Municipal Water System and shall be a first lien on the future 



- 3 - 

Net Revenues of the Water Utility; and shall not be general obligations of the City or payable in 
any manner by taxation and the City shall be in no manner liable by reason of the failure of the 
Net Revenues to be sufficient for the payment of the Loan and Disbursement Agreement and 
Note; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before a Loan and Disbursement Agreement may be authorized and Water 
Revenue Capital Loan Notes issued to evidence the obligation of the City thereunder, it is 
necessary to comply with the provisions of the Code of Iowa, as amended, and to publish a 
notice of the proposal and of the time and place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to 
take action for the authorization of the Loan and Disbursement Agreement and Notes and to 
receive oral and/or written objections from any resident or property owner of the City to such 
action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CARTER LAKE, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That this Council meet in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 950 Locust Street, 
Carter Lake, Iowa, City of Carter Lake, Iowa, at ___________ ______.M., on the 21st day of 
November, 2022, for the purpose of taking action on the matter of the authorization of a Loan 
and Disbursement Agreement and the issuance of Not to Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue 
Capital Loan Notes to evidence the obligations of the City thereunder, the proceeds of which will 
be used to provide funds to pay the costs of acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extending, 
remodeling, improving, repairing and equipping all or part of the Municipal Water System. 
 
 Section 2.  That the Clerk is hereby directed to cause at least one publication to be made 
of a notice of said meeting, in a legal newspaper, printed wholly in the English language, 
published at least once weekly, and having general circulation in said City, said publication to be 
not less than four clear days nor more than twenty days before the date of said public meeting on 
the issuance of the Notes. 
 
 Section 3.  The notice of the proposed action shall be in substantially the following form: 
 
 

  



- 4 - 

(To be published between November 1, 2022 and November 17, 2022, inclusive) 
 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARTER LAKE, IOWA ON THE MATTER OF THE 
PROPOSED AUTHORIZATION OF A LOAN AND 
DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AND THE ISSUANCE OF 
NOT TO EXCEED $1,425,000 WATER REVENUE CAPITAL 
LOAN NOTES, AND THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE THEREOF 

 
 PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Council of the City of Carter Lake, Iowa, will 
hold a public hearing on the 21st day of November, 2022, at ___________ ______.M., in the 
Council Chambers, City Hall, 950 Locust Street, Carter Lake, Iowa, City of Carter Lake, Iowa, at 
which meeting the Council proposes to take additional action for the authorization of a Loan and 
Disbursement Agreement by and between the City and the Iowa Finance Authority, and the 
issuance to the Iowa Finance Authority of not to exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan 
Notes to evidence the obligations of the City under said Loan and Disbursement Agreement, in 
order to provide funds to pay the costs of acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extending, 
remodeling, improving, repairing and equipping all or part of the Municipal Water System.  The 
Notes will not constitute general obligations or be payable in any manner by taxation, but will be 
payable from and secured by the Net Revenues of the Municipal Water System. 
 

The proceeds of the Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes may be applied to pay project 
costs directly or as interim financing which the City will issue in anticipation of the future receipt 
of funds or Note proceeds applicable to the foregoing project and purpose. 
 
 At the above meeting the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any 
resident or property owner of the City, to the above action.  After all objections have been 
received and considered, the Council will at this meeting or at any adjournment thereof, take 
additional action for the authorization of said Loan and Disbursement Agreement and the 
issuance of Notes or will abandon the proposal to issue the Notes. 
 
 This Notice is given by order of the Council of City of Carter Lake, Iowa, as provided by 
Sections 384.24A and 384.83 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 
 Dated this __________ day of _______________, 2022. 
  

 
  
City Clerk, City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa 

 
 
 

(End of Notice) 
 
  



- 5 - 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of October, 2022. 
  

 
 
  
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
City Clerk 

 

 
 
 



 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF POTTAWATTAMIE 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the City showing 
proceedings of the Council, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Council with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Council and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the 
public and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Council pursuant to 
the local rules of the Council and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable 
advance notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of 
the meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective City offices as indicated therein, that no Council vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the City or the 
right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Council hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa 

 
 

 

 

 

02109898-1\16086-065 
  



 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF POTTAWATTAMIE 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am now and was at the times hereinafter 

mentioned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Carter Lake, in the County of 
Pottawattamie, State of Iowa, and that as such Clerk and by full authority from the Council of the 
City, I have caused a 
 

NOTICE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING  
Not to Exceed $1,425,000 Water Revenue Capital Loan Notes 

 
of which the clipping annexed to the publisher's affidavit hereto attached is in words and 
figures a correct and complete copy, to be published as required by law in the 
"___________________________________________________", a legal newspaper 
published at least once weekly, printed wholly in the English language, published 
regularly and mailed through the post office of current entry for more than two years and 
which has had for more than two years a bona fide paid circulation recognized by the 
postal laws of the United States, and has a general circulation in the City, and that the 
Notice was published in all of the issues thereof published and circulated on the 
following date: 
 

____________________, 2022. 
 

WITNESS my official signature at Carter Lake, Iowa, this __________ day of 
_______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

City Clerk, City of Carter Lake, State of Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02109898-1\16086-065 









Community Center  Director Report 

September 2022 

Marketing Updates 

• Updated information for new website—Community Cen-

ter to be listed soon 

• October & November Senior Center Calendar  

• Digital Community Center survey - 122 responses– 4 win-

ners announced in October newsletter to win a member-

ship of their choice 
 

Community Center Staffing 

• New Recreation and Fitness Manager - Dan Adams 

• Interviews continue for Membership and Events Manager. 
 

Community Center Policies and Procedures 

• Operations Manual (on-going) 

• Incident report  

• Guest Registration Form 

• MOU agreement (including Hold Harmless and Indemnifi-

cation) 

• Purchase Order Request & SOP developed 
 

Software  

• EZ Contract signed and training to begin in October 

• Les Mills Virtual—contract sent to Legal for review 
 

Departmental Meetings 

• Senior Center Sept. 1, 16 

  Thank you to Marilyn Heider for all her help! 

  Ollie the Trolley Tour of Lights Scheduled in December 

• Parks & Rec  Sept. 12, 19, 26 

  Tackle Football - Season Aug-October                        

 Possible Championship for 3rd/4th grade! 

  Flag Football - Season August-October    

  Cheerleaders - Cheered at Tackle football games 

  Basketball - Carter Lake Team(s) for Cobra  League              

 Registration in progress  

Senior Center Totals 

Weekly Activities   

Bingo Monday 12:30 - 2:00 PM 37 

Bingo Wednesday 12:30 - 2:00 PM 43 

Bingo Friday 12:30 - 2:00 PM 50 

Cards Monday 10 AM-11:30 AM 12 

Cards Wednesday 10 AM - 11:30 AM 15 

Cards Friday 10 AM - 11:30 AM 14 

    

Monthly Activities    

Game Day Thursday 10:00 AM - 11AM 0 

Birthday Night Thursday 5:00 - 6:30 PM 26 

Bingo Night 5 PM -7:15 PM 23 

Crafts Thursday 10:00 AM - 11 AM 6 

Site Council 10 AM -11 AM 4 

Blood Pressure Monday 10 AM - 11 AM 0 

Monthly Outings   

Wildlife Safari Park 12 

Daily Meals   

Meals in-house 75 

Meals delivered 341 

Total Meals 416 

Morning pick up (duplicated) 35 

    

Transportation to Doctor’s Appointments 8 

Sports Programs Statistics Totals 

Sport   

Flag Football (Finished October 8) 52 

Tackle Football (Finished season October 15) 69 

Cheerleaders (Finished October 9) 63 

Basketball Cobra League (Jan - March 2023)   



Library Director’s Report
October 11th,  2022

September Circulation
WiFi Usage 116
New Cards 33
Patron Count 295
Circulation 340
Community Passes 15
Ebooks/ E-Audiobooks 80

Revenue
Photocopies/ Printouts $  41.85
FAX $  22.40
Fines $  17.00
Donations $  52.01

Current Updates:

● The teen area now has a lockable cabinet and television for future gaming programs.
There are a few more things that we need to add before we start doing programs in that
area but things are moving in the right direction.

● Several board games (in great shape) were donated for our Family Board Game Day.
● As noted above patron count and physical circulation have been phenomenal. We are

seeing a lot of new faces in the library.
● We have begun to offer Tech classes for common tech concerns and everyday technology.
● We are currently building our large print collection for those residents who wanted to

have more on the shelves.
● The community response over the changes that have been made at the library continues to

be very POSITIVE!
● Keeping up daily with construction (trying, lol!!)

Ph:  712-347-5492            Location:  1120 Willow Dr. – Carter Lake, IA 51510        Email: info@carterlakelibrary.org
The public library is more than a repository of books. It’s a mysterious, wonderous place with the power to change lives.

~Elizabeth Taylor

mailto:info@carterlakelibrary.org


Page 1 of 2

CFS Monthly Report Printed on September 30, 2022

Codes With Descriptions
            Totals

911 - 911 HANGUP CALL       3           3

ADMIN - ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIGNMENT       3           3

ALAB - BUSINESS ALARM       6           6

ANIMAL - ANIMAL COMPLAINT       6           6

ARES - RESIDENTIAL OR HOME ALARM       2           2

ARMED - ARMED SUBJECT       1           1

ASLE - ASSIST LAW ENFORCEMENT       1           1

ASSA - ASSAULT       5           5

BDC - BROADCAST       2           2

BURG - BURGLARY       4           4

CIVIL - CIVIL PAPERS, CIVIL SITUATION, KEEP THE PEACE       4           4

CLOC - CHECK LOCATION     35         35

CLOC - CHECK LOCATION; E4 - ASSAULT/SEXUAL ASSAULT/STUN GUN       1           1

COMPLAINT - COMPLAINT REPORT       9           9

CRIM - CRIMINAL MISCHIEF OR VANDALISM       6           6

CWEL - CHECK THE WELFARE     24         24

CWEL - CHECK THE WELFARE; EMED - MEDICAL EMERGENCY       1           1

DIST - DISTURBANCE     26         26

DIST - DISTURBANCE; E4 - ASSAULT/SEXUAL ASSAULT/STUN GUN       2           2

DUI - OWI OR IMPAIRED DRIVER       1           1

E23 - OVERDOSE/POISONING (INGESTION)       1           1

E26 - SICK PERSON (SPECIFIC DIAGNOSIS)       1           1

E26 - SICK PERSON (SPECIFIC DIAGNOSIS); ASFD - ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT       1           1

E30 - TRAUMATIC INJURIES (SPECIFIC); ASFD - ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT       1           1

E9 - CARDIAC OR RESPIRATORY ARREST/DEATH       1           1

E9 - CARDIAC OR RESPIRATORY ARREST/DEATH; ASFD - ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT       2           2

E9 - CARDIAC OR RESPIRATORY ARREST/DEATH; DEAD - DEAD BODY       1           1

EVID - EVIDENCE       1           1

FNGAS - NATURAL GAS LEAK; ASFD - ASSIST FIRE DEPARTMENT       1           1

FOBURN - OPEN BURN (FIRE RESPONSE)       1           1

FOLL - FOLLOW UP     20         20

FOUND - FOUND PROPERTY       2           2

FRAUD - FRAUD OR FORGERY       2           2

HARR - HARASSMENT       4           4

INTO - INTOXICATED SUBJECT       1           1

JUV - JUVENILE PROBLEMS       2           2

MOTA - MOTORIST ASSIST       3           3

NOIS - NOISE COMPLAINTS       1           1

OPEN - OPEN DOOR       3           3



Page 2 of 2

Codes With Descriptions
            Totals

PARKING - PARKING PROBLEMS, CONTINUOUSLY PARKED VEHICLE       4           4

PDHR - PROPERTY DAMAGE HIT AND RUN       1           1

PD - PROPERTY DAMAGE ACCIDENT       3           3

SEXU - SEXUAL ASSAULT       1           1

SHOP - SHOPLIFTER       1           1

STAB - STABBING OR CUTTING; E27 - STAB/GUNSHOT/PENETRATING TRAUMA       1           1

SUSP - SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY     24         24

THEFT - THEFT     11         11

THREAT - THREATS       1           1

TRAFFIC - TRAFFIC STOP     79         79

TRAFP - TRAFFIC PROBLEM       1           1

TRESPASS - TRESPASSING     15         15

WANTED - WANTED PERSON       1           1

      1           1

Totals   335       335



Page 1 of 2

CLPD Monthly Arrest Report Printed on September 30, 2022

Case Number Charges Arrest Date Last, First Name Address

CL22-000681 Possession Of A Controlled 08/22/22 SHERROD, JAVON 900 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000677 Fail to Illuminate Rear Plate; 08/20/22 MANTZARIS, TAYLOR 900 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000677 GENERAL PURPOSE REPORT 08/20/22 LOPEZ, ZACHARY 900 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000659 Poss/Purch Alcohol by Person 08/15/22 ASHLEY, BRANDON 900 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000659 Persons Ineligible to Carry 08/15/22 REED, MADELINE 900 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000672 HOLD FOR OTHER IOWA 08/19/22 STILES, JOHN 3510 N 9TH STREET,

CL22-000661 Fugitive From Justice - 1989 08/17/22 ELDRIDGE, KEVIN 1650 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000660 Disorderly Conduct - Loud Raucous 08/16/22 ANYUON, AGAR 1116 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000660 Interfere w/ Official Acts, $0 08/16/22 THICHUONG, 1116 LOCUST ST,

CL22-000660 Assault -- Contact Insulting or 08/16/22 MAMER, SARAH 1116 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000649 GENERAL PURPOSE REPORT 08/10/22 LIEKHUS, DAKOTA 109 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000698 Trespass -- Refuse to Vacate, $0 08/29/22 KRAFT, MICHAEL 1201 AVE H, CARTER

CL22-000694 Assault Causing Bod Inj or Ment 08/27/22 KURTZ, MARK 10 MARINA COURT,

CL22-000675 Public Intoxication -- 1st Off 08/20/22 NORTHBIRD, COREY 3000 AIRPORT RD,



Page 2 of 2

Case Number Charges Arrest Date Last, First Name Address

CL22-000693 DRIVING WHILE BARRED - 08/27/22 YONKIE, LEAH

CL22-000644 Possession Of A Controlled 08/08/22 SPENCER, JAMIE 1300 AVE K, CARTER

CL22-000671 Possession Of A Controlled 08/18/22 VALTERRIA, ANDRES 625 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000674 Intent to Manuf/Deliver Other Sch 08/19/22 CLARK, BRENDAN 1300 LINDWOOD DR,

CL22-000632 Violation Of No Contact/Protective 08/02/22 KESSLER, DANIEL 1031 AVE H, CARTER

CL22-000703 Trespass -- Refuse to Vacate, $0 08/30/22 LAWRIE, JAMES 1650 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000702 Public Intoxication -- 1st Off 08/29/22 MCELVEEN, LERON 2510 ABBOTT PLZ,

CL22-000639 Public Intoxication -- 1st Off 08/04/22 MCELVEEN, LERON 1202 E LOCUST ST,

CL22-000638 Domestic Abuse Assault, 3rd or 08/03/22 BENNETT, SARAH 3000 N 13TH STREET,

CL22-000682 Public Intoxication -- 1st Off; 08/22/22 CHRISTIANSEN, VAN 2449 N 13TH ST,

CL22-000630 PCSO WARRANT 08/01/22 FRESE, DYLAN 3000 AIRPORT RD,

Total Records: 25



 
 

 Carter Lake Fire Department Monthly Report  
Proudly Serving since 1956 

 
 

Department Head:  Chief Eric Bentzinger            Report done by: Coordinator Phillip Newton 
 

 
                                     Contact information:   Station # 712-347-5900                       Email:  clfire@carterlake-ia.gov 
 
                                                       

                                                         Check us out on FACEBOOK — Carter Lake Fire & Rescue    

 
 

Month:  September 2022 
 
 

Continuous Issues/Budget:     
 
Employee and Organization Development:  In process of yearly maintenance and testing of vehicles and equipment 
 
 

 Pancake Breakfast:    Pancake Breakfast is February 5th at the Fire Station- 7:30 to Noon   
 
 
Monthly Meetings (1st Tuesday):        6:30-Done            Officers, Members, Smoke Eaters:   
Fire training (1st Saturday):                  9-noon                  Rapid Deployments and hydrants                                                 
Fire training (2nd Tuesday):                  7-10pm                 Rapid Deployments and Hydrants    
EMS training (3rd Tuesday):                 7-10pm                 Airway Emergencies, skills stations    
 
 
 Safety Minutes:    Please see safety minutes attached to email 
 
Safety Committee:  Next Safety Meeting is November 2nd @ 13:00 at City Hall.   
 
 
Total Calls for the month:                                 2021- 546 Total(record) calls            2020 – 431 Total calls      2019- 443 Total Calls                 
              2022                                                                                                                                                                                                       
EMS (ambulance) 41 
Fire/Other calls:  10      
 
 
Other: Additional Information for Mayor, City Council & Citizens:  
 

         
 

  

1. Looking for In Town Volunteers, Call Phill at the Fire Station 712-347-5900 
 
2.      Public breakfasts will now be 3 times a year. Breakfasts will be in February, May & October. We          

                 will also continue to do the breakfast in July for pancakes in the park. This will be held only in the park and only for the  
                 attendees of the church service. 
         
                  



  

CARTER LAKE SAFETY MEETING LOG  
 

Meeting Date:   Location:   

Members Present: 

      

      

      

 

Discussion Topics: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

 

Old Business (Review previous minutes and follow-up on assignments) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



Review of Accidents (Include date of injury, details of accident, and corrective action taken or 
needed): 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

New Business (Assignments, hazards identified, etc.): 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Next Meeting Date:   



SAFETY ACTION PLAN 
 

Assignment Number 
 

Assignment 
 

Person Responsible 
 

 

Estimated Completion Date 
 

 

Completion Date 
 

 

Assignment Number 
 

Assignment 
 

Person Responsible 
 

 

Estimated Completion Date 
 

 

Completion Date 
 

 

Assignment Number 
 

Assignment 
 

Person Responsible 
 

 

Estimated Completion Date 
 

 

Completion Date 
 

 

Assignment Number 
 

Assignment 
 

Person Responsible 
 

 

Estimated Completion Date 
 

 

Completion Date 
 

 

Assignment Number 
 

Assignment 
 

Person Responsible 
 

 

Estimated Completion Date 
 

 

Completion Date 
 

 

 
 



Page 1

 
MAINTENANCE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
RANDY SMITH

08/29/22 1/4 7.79                   
TOTAL MAINT OVERTIME: 1/4 7.79$                 

POLICE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
NICK DARGY

08/23/22 STEP 6 233.28               
08/27/22 STEP 6 233.28               

          12 466.56$             

JACOB HUSCROFT
08/22/22 STEP 7 293.27               
08/27/22 Cover shift 10 418.95               
08/28/22 STEP 2 1/2 104.74               

19 1/2 816.95$             
ADAM SWINARSKI

08/26/22 STEP 5 209.48               
08/28/22 STEP 7 293.27               

12 502.74$             

TOTAL POLICE OVERTIME: 43 1/2 1,786.25$          

LIBRARY OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
CHELSEA BOLLOM  

09/02/22 2 1/2 67.50$               

TOTAL LIBRARY OVERTIME: 2 1/2 67.50$               

PARKS DEPT OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
CHARLES BENNETT  

08/20/22 Park cleanup 2 45.00                 
08/28/22 Park cleanup 2 45.00                 

4 90.00$               
RONNIE FISHER  

08/20/22 Park cleanup 2 77.43                 
08/28/22 Park cleanup 2 77.43                 

4 154.86$             

TOTAL PARKS OVERTIME: 8 244.86$             

FIRE DEPT OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
PHILLIP NEWTON  

08/24/22 1/4 9.83                   
08/30/22 Cascade system yearly certification 1/4 9.83                   

TOTAL FIRE DEPT OVERTIME: 1/2 19.66$               

 ADMIN OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
LAURI WILHITE  

08/26/22 3/4 21.95                 
09/02/22 1/2 14.63                 

TOTAL ADMIN OVERTIME: 1 1/4 36.58$               

TOTAL ALL OVERTIME: 56 2,162.64$      

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 2, 2022



Page 2

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 2, 2022

COMPTIME EARNED: OT HOURS COMP HRS
JACOB HUSCROFT

08/28/22 Cover shift 10 15

TOTAL COMPTIME EARNED: 10 15

COMPTIME USED: HOURS
JOSH DRISCOLL

08/24/22 1/2

RYAN GONSIOR
08/24/22 3
08/26/22 6

9

TOTAL COMPTIME USED: 9 1/2

COMPTIME BALANCES: HOURS
NATE BENTZINGER 45
GARY CHAMBERS 2
NICK DARGY 9
JOSH DRISCOLL 70 1/2
RYAN GONSIOR 61 1/2
JACOB HUSCROFT 54 3/4
ROBERT MCCLOUD 42 1/2
MATT OWENS 19 1/4
MATTHEW SEWING 1 3/4
ADAM SWINARSKI 4
LAURI WILHITE 4 1/2

TOTAL COMP BALANCES: 314 3/4

ADMIN BALANCES: HOURS
SHAWN KANNEDY 0



Page 1

 
MAINTENANCE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
RANDY SMITH

09/10/22 4 124.56               
TOTAL MAINT OVERTIME: 4 124.56$             

POLICE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
GARY CHAMBERS

09/05/22 Worked holiday 8 385.44               
09/13/22 Work with Kava on GPS 1 48.18                 

9 433.62$             
JOSH DRISCOLL

09/07/22 Late call 1/4 12.64                 
09/13/22 Late call 1/2 25.29                 

          3/4 37.93$               
RYAN GONSIOR

09/05/22 Worked Holiday 10 481.80$             

MATTHEW SEWING
09/05/22 Worked holiday / Late call 10 1/4 429.42               
09/09/22 Reports / Complaints 1/2 20.95                 

10 3/4 450.37$             

ADAM SWINARSKI
09/05/22 Worked holiday 10 418.95$             

TOTAL POLICE OVERTIME: 40 1/2 1,822.67$          

LIBRARY OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
CHELSEA BOLLOM  

09/09/22 1 27.00                 
09/16/22 1/2 13.50                 

1 1/2 40.50$               
MAGGIE SCHMIDT  

09/09/22 1/2 12.38                 
09/16/22 4 1/2 111.38               

5 123.75$             

TOTAL LIBRARY OVERTIME: 6 1/2 164.25$             

PARKS DEPT OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
CHARLES BENNETT  

09/04/22 Park cleanup 2 45.00                 
09/11/22 Park cleanup 2 45.00                 

4 90.00$               
RONNIE FISHER  

09/04/22 Park cleanup 2 77.43                 
09/08/22 1/4 9.68                   
09/16/22 Park cleanup 2 77.43                 

4 1/4 164.54$             

TOTAL PARKS OVERTIME: 8 1/4 254.54$             

 ADMIN OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
LAURI WILHITE  

09/06/22 1 29.27                 
09/07/22 1 1/4 36.58                 
09/09/22 1 1/4 36.58                 

3 1/2 102.43$             
LISA RUEHLE  

09/15/22 1 47.64                 
1 47.64$               

TOTAL ADMIN OVERTIME: 4 1/2 150.07$             

TOTAL ALL OVERTIME: 63 3/4 2,516.09$      

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 16, 2022



Page 2

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 16, 2022

COMPTIME EARNED: OT HOURS COMP HRS
NATE BENTZINGER

09/05/22 Holiday hours 8 8
09/09/22 3 4 1/2

 11 12 1/2
GARY CHAMBERS

09/05/22 Holiday hours 8 8

JOSH DRISCOLL
09/05/22 Holiday hours 8 8

RYAN GONSIOR
09/05/22 Holiday hours 8 8

JACOB HUSCROFT
09/08/22 1 1/2 2 1/4

ADAM SWINARSKI  
09/05/22 Holiday hours 8 8

TOTAL COMPTIME EARNED: 44 1/2 46 3/4

COMPTIME USED: HOURS
GARY CHAMBERS

09/11/22 1 3/4

JOSH DRISCOLL
09/03/22 10

RYAN GONSIOR
09/10/22 2
09/15/22 1

3
JACOB HUSCROFT

09/07/22 10

TOTAL COMPTIME USED: 24 3/4

COMPTIME BALANCES: HOURS
NATE BENTZINGER 57 1/2
GARY CHAMBERS 8 1/4
NICK DARGY 9
JOSH DRISCOLL 68 1/2
RYAN GONSIOR 66 1/2
JACOB HUSCROFT 47
ROBERT MCCLOUD 42 1/2
MATT OWENS 19 1/4
MATTHEW SEWING 1 3/4
ADAM SWINARSKI 12
LAURI WILHITE 4 1/2

TOTAL COMP BALANCES: 336 3/4

ADMIN BALANCES: HOURS
SHAWN KANNEDY 0



Page 1

 
MAINTENANCE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
STEPHEN LIFE

09/28/22 1/2 13.50$               

TOTAL MAINT OVERTIME: 1/2 13.50$               

POLICE OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
GARY CHAMBERS

09/19/22 Arrest 1 3/4 84.32                 
09/25/22 Arrest 1 3/4 84.32                 
09/30/22 Training 4 192.72               

7 1/2 361.35$             
JACOB HUSCROFT

09/26/22 1/4 10.47                 
09/30/22 1/2 20.95                 

3/4 31.42$               

ADAM SWINARSKI
09/19/22 2 83.79                 
09/24/22 Cover shift 5 209.48               

7 293.27$             

TOTAL POLICE OVERTIME: 15 1/4 686.04$             

LIBRARY OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
CHELSEA BOLLOM  

09/22/22 1/2 13.50                 
09/23/22 1 3/4 47.25                 
09/30/22 4 108.00               

6 1/4 168.75$             
MAGGIE SCHMIDT  

09/26/22 1 24.75                 
09/30/22 2 49.50                 

3 74.25$               

TOTAL LIBRARY OVERTIME: 9 1/4 243.00$             

PARKS DEPT OVERTIME HOURS AMOUNTS
CHARLES BENNETT  

09/18/22 Park cleanup 2 45.00$               

RONNIE FISHER  
09/04/22 Park cleanup 2 77.43$               

TOTAL PARKS OVERTIME: 4 122.43$             

 ADMIN OVERTIME: HOURS AMOUNTS
LAURI WILHITE  

09/19/22 1 29.27                 
09/23/22 1 29.27                 
09/30/22 2 58.53                 

4 117.06$             
LISA RUEHLE  

09/22/22 1/2 23.82$               

TOTAL ADMIN OVERTIME: 4 1/2 140.88$             

TOTAL ALL OVERTIME: 33 1/2 1,205.85$      

COMPTIME EARNED: OT HOURS COMP HRS
NATE BENTZINGER

09/22/22 1/4 1/2

RYAN GONSIOR
09/19/22 Late call 1/2 3/4

TOTAL COMPTIME EARNED: 3/4 1 1/4

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 30, 2022



Page 2

OVERTIME AND COMPTIME REPORT
September 30, 2022

COMPTIME USED: HOURS
JOSH DRISCOLL

09/18/22 1
09/21/22 1

2
RYAN GONSIOR

09/25/22 10

ADAM SWINARSKI
09/25/22 3

TOTAL COMPTIME USED: 15

COMPTIME BALANCES: HOURS
NATE BENTZINGER 58
GARY CHAMBERS 8 1/4
NICK DARGY 9
JOSH DRISCOLL 66 1/2
RYAN GONSIOR 57 1/4
JACOB HUSCROFT 47
ROBERT MCCLOUD 42 1/2
MATT OWENS 19 1/4
MATTHEW SEWING 1 3/4
ADAM SWINARSKI 9
LAURI WILHITE 4 1/2

TOTAL COMP BALANCES: 323

ADMIN BALANCES: HOURS
SHAWN KANNEDY 0


	10-17-22 - CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	Carter Lake Comp Plan Working Version_2022-10-13
	Ahlers & Cooney - Engagement Agreement - P&D Loan
	Carter Lake - Lt to City w-Resolution to Fix Hearing - P D Loan (02111766x7F7E1)
	Carter Lake - Notice of Public Hearing for publication purposes (02111749x7F7E1)
	Carter Lake - Resolution to Fix Hearing - P D Loan (02111761x7F7E1)
	CLCC Pay request #13   10-17-2022
	CLCC_Monthly_Report_09.2022
	Library October Monthly Report
	cfs_monthly_report_2022-09-30_23.59.40
	clpd_monthly_arrest_report_2022-09-30_23.59.40
	Fire Monthly Council Report Master
	Safety Minutes Master
	CARTER LAKE SAFETY MEETING LOG
	SAFETY ACTION PLAN

	OT Report 09-02-22
	OT&CT (2)

	OT Report 09-16-22
	OT&CT (2)

	OT Report 09-30-22
	OT&CT (2)


	Meeting Date:      October 2022
	Location:     Fire Station
	Members Present 1:  Phillip Newton  -  Coordinator
	Members Present 2:  712-347-5900      Fire Station
	Members Present 3:  clfire@carterlake-ia.gov
	1: Phillip Newton             
	2: Dexter Johnson
	3: 
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3_2: 
	Discussion Topics 1: Reviewed last months minutes
	Discussion Topics 2: New safety committee member added
	Discussion Topics 3: Incident protocols reviewed
	Discussion Topics 4: 
	Discussion Topics 5: 
	Discussion Topics 6: 
	Discussion Topics 7: 
	Discussion Topics 8: 
	Discussion Topics 9:  
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 1: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 2: Any work related incidents, Please let Phillip know about any incidents right away, Phills cell# 402-657-8976
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 3: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 4: 8 Fire dept members 5 year physical done, will have 2 for next year.
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 5: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 6: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 7: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 8: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 9: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 10: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 11: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 12: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 13: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 14: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 15: 
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 16: Safety Committee: Please make sure department check off lists are done by the 7th of each month.
	Old Business Review previous minutes and followup on assignments 17: 
	needed 1: 
	needed 2: Officer Matt Owens received an injury while at a training. 
	needed 3: The incident was reviewed and at this time it has been filed.   
	needed 4: Safety Coordinator was not notified until several weeks later. This was discussed with Dick Dickey of IMWCA who
	needed 5: is our  work comp representative. Detailed email was sent out to all employees, departemmnt heads and 
	needed 6: administration of the proper protocol for notifications and paperwork to do when there is any incident.
	needed 7: 
	needed 8: 
	needed 9:                                                                        *** TRAINING & NOTES ***
	needed 10: 
	needed 11:                                             Safety Thought of the Month,  "  "
	needed 12:  
	needed 13:                                      ***Employee or Public vital sign checks, call Phillip    712-347-5900                                      
	needed 14:                              
	needed 15: All Departments:       
	needed 16:                             URL for training site:   See email that were sent out for new training site                
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 1: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 2: ***PLEASE let Phill know right away when there is an incident. Also the paperwork and incident have to be done right 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 3: away and nurse called if applicable. 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 4: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 5:  
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 6: COVID- Please keep cleaning and sanitizing areas of concern in each department. 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 7:  
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 8: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 9: News employee cpr  and safety trainings done. (Library and Community Center)
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 10: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 11: Dexter Johnson has graciously accepted a position on the Safety Committee. 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 12: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 13: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 14: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 15: 
	New Business Assignments hazards identified etc 16: 
	Next Meeting Date:      November 2nd, 2022                Fire Station @ 1:00 pm
	Assignment Number: NA
	Person Responsible: 
	Estimated Completion Date: 
	Completion Date: 
	Assignment: NA
	Assignment Number_2: Parks and Recreation
	Person Responsible_2: 
	Estimated Completion Date_2: 
	Completion Date_2: 
	Assignment_2: 
	Assignment Number_3: 
	Person Responsible_3: 
	Estimated Completion Date_3: 
	Completion Date_3: 
	Assignment_3: 
	Assignment Number_4: 
	Person Responsible_4: 
	Estimated Completion Date_4: 
	Completion Date_4: 
	Assignment_4: 
	Assignment Number_5: 
	Person Responsible_5: 
	Estimated Completion Date_5: 
	Completion Date_5: 
	Assignment_5: 


